
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

** Appendices attached separately 

* Declarations of Interests 

If you are present at a meeting of London Councils’ or any of its associated joint committees or 
their sub-committees and you have a disclosable pecuniary interest* relating to any business that 
is or will be considered at the meeting you must not: 
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become aware of 
your disclosable pecuniary interest during the meeting, participate further in any 
discussion of the business, or 

• participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting. 
 
These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a member of the 
public. 
 

Audit Committee   
 

1 December 2022: 10:30am 
 

 

Location: Meeting Room 6, 4th Floor, 59½ Southwark Street, London, SE1 0AL 

Contact Officer: Alan Edwards 

Telephone: 020 7934 9911 Email: Alan.e@londoncouncils.gov.uk 

 

Agenda items 
 

 

1.     Apologies for Absence  - 

2.     Declarations of Interests* - 

3.      Minutes of the Informal Audit Committee Meeting held on 15    
September 2022 

1 

4.     Annual Audit Progress Report 2021/22 6 

Exclusion of the Press & Public (Exempt) 

The Chair to ask the removal of the press and public since the following 
items would be exempt from the Access to Information Regulations.   Local 
Government Act 1972 Schedule 12(a) (as amended) Section 3 Information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person, including 
the authority holding that information. 

 

E1.   Appointment of External Auditors 1 



 

 

It is a matter for each member to decide whether they should leave the room while an item that 
they have an interest in is being discussed.  In arriving at a decision as to whether to leave the 
room they may wish to have regard to their home authority’s code of conduct and/or the Seven 
(Nolan) Principles of Public Life. 
 
*as defined by the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 
 
 
If you have any queries regarding this agenda or are unable to attend this meeting, please 

contact: 

 

Alan Edwards 

Governance Manager 

Corporate Governance Division 

Tel: 020 7934 9911 

Email: alan.e@londoncouncils.gov.uk 

 



 

Minutes of the Informal Audit Committee held on 15 September 2022 Audit Committee – 1 December 2022 
Agenda Item 3, Page 1 

Minutes of the Informal Virtual Meeting of the Audit Committee held on 
15 September 2022.  

 
Minutes of the informal, virtual meeting of London Councils’ Audit Committee held on 15 
September 2022. 
 
Members Present: 
 
Cllr Peray Ahmet (LB Haringey) 
Cllr David Gardner (RB Greenwich) 
Cllr Stephen Alambritis MBE (LB Merton) (virtual) 
Cllr Robin Brown (LB Richmond) 
Cllr Jonathan Cook (LB Wandsworth) 
 
 
In Attendance: 
 
Matt Lock, Head of Audit & Risk Management, City of London Corporation (virtual) 
Ciaran T McLaughlin,  Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Ibukun Oluwasegun, Audit Manager, Grant Thornton UK LLP 
London Councils’ officers were in attendance. 
 
Introductions were made. The Chair said that the meeting was originally going to take place “in-
person” but was rescheduled to take place virtually owing to a planned rail strike. The rail strike 
had since been called-off but it was agreed that it was too late to change the Audit Committee back 
to an in-person meeting. 
 
A thirty second silence/pause took place in order to reflect on and pay respects to Queen Elizabeth 
II who had sadly passed away.  
 
1. Apologies for Absence 
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 
 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3. Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 16 June 2022 
 
It was noted that the Audit Committee held on 16 June 2022 was referred to as an “informal” 
committee meeting and this needed to be changed. It was also noted that the Chair was listed as 
being from the London Borough of Havering on the “Present” section at the front of the minutes 
and this needed to be changed to the London Borough of Haringey.  
 
Subject to the above amendments, the minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2022 were noted to 
be an accurate record of the meeting and would be formally agreed via the London Councils’ 
Urgency Procedure following the meeting.  
 
4.  Financial Accounts 2021/22 

The Audit Committee received a report that presented the London Councils Consolidated 
Statement of Accounts for 2021/22, London Councils Transport and Environment Committee 
(TEC) Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 and London Councils Grants Committee Statement of 
Accounts for 2021/22. 

 



 

Minutes of the Informal Audit Committee held on 15 September 2022 Audit Committee – 1 December 2022 
Agenda Item 3, Page 2 

David Sanni, Director of Corporate Resource, London Councils, introduced the report of the 
Statement of Accounts that were originally scheduled for member approval before the end of 
September 2022, but had now been deferred by approximately a month. It was hoped that future 
Consolidated Accounts would be ready for approval earlier next time. The accounts would be 
shared with the London Councils’ Audit Committee and included in the reports going to the March 
2023 meeting of the Audit Committee.  
 
David Sanni said that “Table 3” (page 8) of the accounts highlighted the adjusted position shown in 
the accounts for 2021/22, along with the actuarial gain on pension assets/liabilities. “Table 5” (page 
9) showed the net reduction of usable reserves as at 31 March 2022. This would result in a 
£12.431 million closing consolidated figure. The Chair said that the work on the accounts had been 
put back and asked whether it would be completed by November 2022. David Sanni said that the 
audit was due to start in October 2022, with a view to completion in November 2022. Ciaran 
McLaughlin, Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton, said that the audit was scheduled to start in 
October 2022, although due to a national infrastructure issue, this had caused a piling-up/backlog 
of work. He said that the audit could not now be signed-off until early December 2022 (statutory 
override), although work would take place as soon as it was possible to do so.   
 
Councillor Gardner said that he would feel more comfortable if a full Audit Committee meeting 
convened, rather than a virtual informal meeting, in order for Members to examine the Financial 
Accounts in more detail. Councillor Gardner also voiced concern that the deficit reduction that had 
taken place over the last few years had eaten into the reserves. He felt that this was not 
sustainable and asked whether this was a long-term deliberate plan or was just a result of the 
pandemic. The Chair said that she would be happy for a full Audit Committee meeting to convene 
in December 2022. David Sanni said that an additional Audit Committee meeting should take place 
in December 2022, once the accounts had been completed. Alan Edwards, Governance Manager, 
London Councils, would canvass for a suitable date in December.  
 
David Sanni said that London Councils utilised the reserves in order to balance the budget. 
However, as part of this year’s process, London Councils was looking to reduce the reliance of 
reserves, by looking at patterns that were occurring for instance, and to have a more sustainable 
position going forward. Councillor Cook asked, as a new Member to the committee, how long the 
trend of relying on the reserves had been going on. David Sanni said that a reliance on reserves 
had been taken place over the last decade. He said that there were specific reserves that were 
used, like for the renewal of the Freedom Pass that took place every 5-years, and a “special 
projects” reserve that TEC used on important environmental issues like Climate Change.  
 
David Sanni said that this meant that a certain amount of reserves would be used and ensured that 
these charges were not passed on to the boroughs. There were also a number of initiatives, like 
the recent digital enablement, where the reserves needed to be used rather than to ask the 
boroughs for the funding. David Sanni said that the reserves could not be continually relied upon 
because a minimum level of reserves needed to be maintained in order for this to be sustainable 
from a financial position. Councillor Gardner asked what the minimal level of reserves were. David 
Sanni said that Grants kept £250,000 in reserves, and TEC was above this amount. He said that 
there was not a set level of reserves for the core Joint Committee. Councillor Brown felt that there 
should not be too many reserves held in the accounts.  
 
Councillor Brown asked for an explanation as to why the service costs for pensions had increased 
so much. David Sanni informed Members that this discrepancy had been identified. This was due 
to an increase in inflation (LPFA), along with a decrease in the discounted rate. David Sanni said 
that further investigation would be carried out on this and reported back to the Audit Committee in 
due course. Councillor Alambritis said that he fully supported London Councils policy on reserves 
which was consistent with the boroughs and gave the organisation a degree of flexibility. 
 
 
 
 



 

Minutes of the Informal Audit Committee held on 15 September 2022 Audit Committee – 1 December 2022 
Agenda Item 3, Page 3 

The Audit Committee: 
 

• Noted that Alan Edwards would canvass for a date in December 2022 on which to hold an 
additional “in-person” Audit Committee meeting; and 

• Noted the Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 which would be looked at again in more detail 
at the Audit Committee meeting in December 2022. 

  
5. Internal Audit Update 
 
The Audit Committee received a report that provided an overall status update on progress against 
the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan and a summary of the findings from the completed review of 
Declarations of Interests & Gifts and Hospitality (Amber Assurance Opinion). The report was an 
update in relation to the work of Internal Audit since the last update report made to the June 2022 
meeting. 
 
Matt Lock, Head of Audit & Risk Management, City of London Corporation, introduced the report. 
He said that not a great deal of work had progressed, although the Financial Management audit 
work should be completed within the next day or so and was on track with the other planned work. 
Matt Lock said that one of the key messages to be taken from the declarations of interest work was 
to look at whether London Councils’ procedures were in line with those that were carried out by 
other local authorities and boroughs. He said that a low level of responses were found when it 
came to reporting the annual level of declarations of interests, and this needed to be reviewed. If 
the process was not proportionate, then this would need to be changed and recommendations to 
improve compliance would be made. Matt Lock informed Members that most councillors made 
their declarations to their own boroughs. He said that it was important to recognise that London 
Councils was a separate organisation and guidance for colleagues regarding this matter would 
need to be sought.  
 
Councillor Brown felt that the issue of Members’ declarations of interest needed to be co-ordinated 
as a whole. He asked whether the declarations referred to a Members that were on a statutory 
committee only, or any London Councils’ committee. Matt Lock said that this issue manly related to 
decision-making committees that Members were formally approved to be on. 
 
The Audit Committee noted the latest progress on the Internal audit.  
 
6.         External Auditor Appointment 
 
The Audit Committee received a report that provided the Committee with an update on the 
appointment of an external auditor for London Councils. 
 
David Sanni informed Members that a tender had gone out in the summer with a view to attracting 
a wider number of firms to apply. However, the tender had failed to attract any bids and a new 
tender process was already underway. David Sanni said that this would be completed by the end 
of October 2022. He said that the outcome would be reported to Members by correspondence and 
the new auditors would hopefully be confirmed at London Councils’ Leaders Committee in 
December. The Chair suggested that this item could be added to the agenda of the additional Audit 
Committee meeting being planned in December 2022. Reuben Segal. Head of Governance, 
London Councils, confirmed that the Leaders’ Committee would be taking place on 13 December 
2022. Councillor Brown agreed and said that the Audit Committee could meet to approve the new 
auditors at Audit Committee meeting being scheduled in December.    
 
Councillor Brown said that the current market was a difficult one. He asked whether one of the 
requirements of the tender of working on local government accounts had been relaxed in order to 
attract more applicants. David Sanni said that any potential new firm would be looked at to see 
whether they could adapt to provide an audit for London Councils and had the relevant experience 
to do so. Councillor Gardner agreed and said that it was a difficult market at the moment. He asked 
how many firms London Councils had approached with regards to the tender and whether London 



 

Minutes of the Informal Audit Committee held on 15 September 2022 Audit Committee – 1 December 2022 
Agenda Item 3, Page 4 

Councils had given a suggested benchmark fee.  David Sanni confirmed that it had been an open 
tender exercise. He said that London Councils had received a number of “hits” on the tender but 
had not received any follow-up bids. David Sanni informed Members that London Councils had 
decided to embark on an open tender and was acting on behalf of its own governance 
arrangements. He said that a copy of the accounts were in the tender and these included the 
current audit fees.  
 
Councillor Gardner said that boroughs had different thresholds when it came to declaring interests 
and accepting gifts. He said that what was applicable to London Councils may well be different to 
other boroughs. Matt Lock said that the internal audit did not look into what other boroughs did with 
regards to declarations, gifts and hospitality. He said that any declarations needed to be relevant to 
London Councils. Members made their declarations to their own local authorities and set limits for 
gifts and hospitalities that the local authority felt was appropriate.  
 
The Audit Committee noted the internal audit update report. 
 
7. London Councils’ Pension Scheme 
 
The Committee considered a report that provided an update on discussions with the London 
Pension Fund Authority (LPFA) on its investment performance since the last Committee meeting 
on 16 June 2022. 
 
David Sanni said that LPFA officers would be looking at funds investment performance. Robert 
Branagh the CEO at LPFA would be meeting with borough officers. David Sanni said that funds 
had been outperforming in comparison with their peers. Comparisons had not been provided to 
other sectors and it was suggested that a private meeting be arranged. David Sanni said that he 
would make enquiries to see if LFPA could join the new Audit Committee meeting in December 
2022 (check with David S). The Chair said that she would be happy to meet LPFA and to bring all 
these issues together at the meeting planned for December.  
 
Councillor Brown asked whether it would be possible to have the papers for the new Audit 
Committee meeting well in advance, as it would be beneficial for Members to have the opportunity 
to go through these reports. He said that that it would be helpful to see a set of documents that 
looked at investment strategy along with a balance of objectives from different pension funds as 
some funds performed better than others.  David Sanni thanked Councillor Brown for his 
comments which would be brought to the attention of LPFA officers. David Sanni said that different 
pension funds were put through and managed through a trial-annual valuation. The amount would 
increase but there would be just one “pot” of assets of the pension fund (check with David S). 
David Sanni said that he would ensure that papers were sent to Audit Committee Members within 
good time.  
 
Councillor Brown asked how the LPFA balanced the needs of different pension funds if there was 
one big pool of assets. He said that it was important for the pool of assets to work. David Sanni 
said that these issues would be raised with LPFA in order for them to bring this information to the 
new Audit Committee meeting in December 2022. The Chair said that these documents could be 
shared as long as they were received by Members within good time.  
 
The Audit Committee: 
 

• Noted the LPFA would be invited to the new Audit Committee meeting planned for 
December 2022 in order to answer Members’ questions like pension fund investments and 
performance; and 

• Noted that the papers and relevant documents for the December Audit Committee meeting 
would be sent to Members within good time. 

 
 
 



 

Minutes of the Informal Audit Committee held on 15 September 2022 Audit Committee – 1 December 2022 
Agenda Item 3, Page 5 

8. Dates of the Audit Committee Meetings for 2023/24 
 
The Audit Committee received a report that notified members of the proposed Audit Committee 
meeting dates for 2023/24.  
 
The Chair said that the report would now need to be updated to include the additional Audit 
Committee meeting scheduled for December 2022. 
 
The Audit Committee noted the Audit Committee meeting dates for 2023/24 and noted that an 
additional meeting would be added to the report for December 2023. 
 
 
The meeting finished at 11:14am 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Annual Audit Progress Report 2021/22     Audit Committee – 1 December 2022 
Agenda Item 4, Page 6 

 

Audit Committee 
 

Annual Audit Progress Report  
2021/22 

 Item no: 04 

 

Report by: David Sanni Job title: Direct of Corporate Resources 

Date: 1 December 2022 

Contact 
Officer: 

David Sanni 

Telephone: 020 7934 9704 Email: david.sanni@londoncouncils.gov.uk 

 

 
Summary This report presents the annual audit report to those charged 

with governance (ISA260) prepared by Grant Thornton, London 

Councils’ external auditor, in respect of the 2021/22 financial 

year.  

 

Ciaran McLaughlin and Ibukun Oluwasegun, from Grant 

Thornton, will attend the meeting to present the report to 

members. 

 
  
Recommendations The Audit Committee is asked to:  

• note the contents of the annual audit report included at 

Appendix A; 

• approve the Letter of Representation included on page 30 

of Appendix A; and 

• consider whether a separate meeting be arranged to 

approve the 2021/22 accounts and audit report following 

the completion of the audit, or if this should be deferred to 

its March 2023 meeting. 

 



   

Annual Audit Report 2021/22     Audit Committee – 1 December 2022 
Agenda Item 4, Page 7 

 

 



   

Annual Audit Report 2021/22     Audit Committee – 1 December 2022 
Agenda Item 4, Page 8 

 

Annual Audit Report 2021/22 

 
Introduction 
 

1. In March 2022, the Audit Committee approved an external audit plan prepared by 

Grant Thornton which set out the scope and approach for the audit of London 

Councils 2021/22 accounts. Grant Thornton is required to report the outcome of its 

audit to those charged with governance in accordance with the International 

Standards of Auditing (UK and Ireland). The audit report summarises the key findings 

to date arising from the audit of London Councils 2021/22 accounts and is included at 

Appendix A to this report. 

 

Audit status 

 

2. Grant Thornton set out in its audit plan that the audit will be carried out in October 

2022, which is later than originally agreed in the audit tender. The audit commenced 

on Monday, 10 October 2022 and has been largely conducted remotely during a 

period when businesses are returning to normal operations following the Covid-19 

pandemic. Whilst progress has been made on the audit there are a number of areas 

still outstanding. A list of the outstanding matters is listed on page 3 of the audit 

report. Grant Thornton anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion on the financial 

statements subject to the satisfactory conclusion of these outstanding matters.   

 

3. As the completion of the audit is yet to be finalised a final set of 2021/22 accounts 

has not been presented to the committee for approval. Members are therefore asked 

to consider whether a sperate meeting be arranged to approve the final 2021/22 

accounts and audit report or if this should be deferred to the March 2023 meeting.  

 

4. There was one recommendation on improvements to internal controls detailed on 

page 16 of the audit report. A management response has been provided setting out 

the mitigating controls in place.  

 

 



   

Annual Audit Report 2021/22     Audit Committee – 1 December 2022 
Agenda Item 4, Page 9 

 

Management representation 

 

5. The management letter of representation is included on page 30 of the audit report. 

The letter declares, to the best of the management's knowledge, that the financial 

statements and other information provided to the auditor are sufficient and 

appropriate and have not omitted any facts that are material to the financial 

statements. A management representation letter will be required for all three sets of 

accounts and will be signed by the Director of Corporate Resources. 

 

 
Financial Implications for London Councils 
 
None 
 
Legal Implications for London Councils 
 
None 
 
Equalities Implications for London Councils 
 
None 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – External Audit Findings Report for 2021/22 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Final accounts working files 2021/22 

London Councils External Audit Plan for 2021/22 





Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence

Conclusion



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

Conclusion



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

Conclusion

•

•

•

•

Conclusion



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•


Light Purple











Commercial in confidence

Net pension liability – £31.189m

•

•

•

•

•

•

•










Light Purple


Light Purple



Light Purple


Light Purple


Light Purple



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•



Commercial in confidence

Transparency report 2020 
(grantthornton.co.uk)





Commercial in confidence











Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence



Commercial in confidence




	Agenda - Audit Committee  1 December 2022 Draft
	Item 3. Minutes of the Informal Audit Committee held on 15-09-22 for 01-12-22 Use this one!
	Item 4. Annual Audit Progress Report Final 2021-22 for 01-12-22
	Item 4. Appendix A - Audit Findings for London Councils Final

